APPROVED MINUTES
PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING
CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA
SEPTEMBER 25, 2018
7:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER:

Planning Commission Chairman Lobermeier called the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming Planning
Commission of September 25, 2018 to order at 7:00 P.M.

CALL OF ROLL:
On a Call of the Roll the following members of the Wyoming Planning Commission were present:
Judy Coughlin, Mark Lobermeier, Dennis Schilling, Bryan Murdock, and Joel Ericson

Members Absent: None.

Also Present: Zoning Administrator Fred Weck.
DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM:

Chairman Lobermeier determined a quorum was present.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

OPEN FORUM:

“An opportunity for members of the public to address the Planning Commission on items not on the
current Agenda. Items requiring Planning Commission action maybe deferred to staff for research
and future Planning Commission Agendas if appropriate.”

No members of the public spoke.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

1. Consider approving the minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming, Minnesota
Planning Commission for September 11, 2018.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER SCHILLING, SECONDED BY
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER COUGHLIN, TO APPROVE THE “REGULAR MEETING”
MINUTES OF THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION FOR SEPTEMBER 11,
2018.

Voting Aye:  Coughlin, Schilling, Murdock, Ericson and Lobermeier.
Voting Nay: None
Abstain: None

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARINGS:

2. Preliminary Plat D-18-001 “Cherry Hill”, Ken Tolzmann
24738 Hamlet Avenue
Property ID Number 21.10659.00

Zoning Administrator Weck explained that there were a number of items in the engineer’s report for
items that were missing or deficient, for example, lot width at the building setback line. He stated
that he had just received an e-mail from Mr. Tolzmann’s surveyor who reported that for lot 2, the lot
width at the setback line is 182 feet, for lot 3 — 185 feet, for lot 4 — 198 feet, lot 6 is 203 feet. He



noted that the minimum setback is 200 feet, so lots 2, 3, and 4 are deficient. He noted that regarding
park dedication, the Joint Park Planning Board recommended $13,488 in fees. He stated that
number 4 of the conditions actually refers to a private road and utility easement that serves a house
on the west side of the property, so it is still needed. He noted that item number 9, for snow storage
is needed in the cul-de-sac.

Mr. Tolzmann stated that he is fine with the performance bond requirement and the development
agreement with the City. He stated that something that will need to be addressed in the development
agreement is the access from Highway 8. He noted that MnDot reviewed the plans in May and didn’t
require any turn lanes, however, now they are asking for a westbound right turn lane and are also
recommending an eastbound left turn lane. He stated that he would like to come up with something
that is economically feasible to address the access because trying to make a left hand turn from
Highway 8 is really dangerous. He stated that he is hoping that together with the City they can come
up with a plan that will ultimately save lives. He stated that he didn’t think he could fund the cost of
putting in a turn lane for just a 10-lot parcel. He stated that he and his surveyor are working on
making sure the right setback widths are in place.

Warren White, Mr. Tolzmann’s engineer, stated that there is a small island of high ground in the
northeast corner of the plat, which would be lot 3 high ground and lot 6 is the very narrow strip of
high ground along the arching curve and noted that neither of these are buildable so there won’t be
any issue. Mr. White stated that he is confused by the numbers given to Zoning Administrator Weck
by the surveyor because he took the AutoCAD drawings and his calculations came to: for lot 2 —
201.24 feet, lot 3 — 200.36 feet, and lot 4 — 201 feet. He stated that he will work with the surveyor on
this issue, but he believes they will all meet the 200-foot setback requirement. He asked the City to
make an exception for the lot width of lot 6 to be acceptable as it is due to the wetlands.

Planning/Zoning Administrator Weck stated that would require a variance.

Mr. Tolzmann asked what the options there may be for the turn lane requirement.

Chair Lobermeier stated that would be between Mr. Tolzmann and MnDot.

Commissioner Coughlin suggested he contact the area engineer, Dimitri, as a starting point because
there may be some funding programs available that could assist with the cost of putting in a turn

lane.

Mr. Tolzmann stated that they are not looking to develop this area rapidly, they just want a lot to put
their house

Planning/Zoning Administrator Weck noted that once a final plat is approved, the lots are existing
lots that can be sold.

Chair Lobermeier opened the Public Hearing for comment at 7:20 p.m.

Jason Roberts, 24626 Hamlet Ave, stated that one of his biggest concerns was having approximately
20 more cars turning onto Highway 8 and stated that he feels it will be a good idea to conduct a traffic
study. He asked if anyone had brought up future paving on this road.

Planning/Zoning Administrator Weck stated that the future property owners can petition the City to
have it paved.

Mr. Roberts stated that if there is a ten-lot development going in there, why would the existing
residents be assessed for the street.



Planning/Zoning Administrator Weck stated that both the existing and the new residents would be
assessed for the road.

Daniel Boehnen, 24734 Hamlet Avenue, stated that this is already a dangerous intersection and
traveling up and down Highway 8 as a whole is also dangerous. He stated that he lives next to Mr.
Tolzmann now and thinks this plan is a welcome situation for the area and will bring a larger tax base
for the City.

Joyce Winnik, 7219 Lake Blvd, she stated that she knows when the humane society went in a turn
lane was required and they did not pay for it, so she suspects there must be funding out there to
assist in paying for these types of things.

Mary Renn, 25421 West Comfort, noted that West Comfort did not originally have a turn lane when
they moved in and it was very scary to make a left turn. She stated that she believes adding a left
turn lane will add to the market value of the properties and will increase the desire to live there
because it will be safer.

Daniel Boehnen, 24734 Hamlet Avenue, stated that the whole area needs to be addressed and
reiterated that it is dangerous as it is for everyone who lives there.

There being no additional comments, Chair Lobermeier closed the Public Hearing at 7:27 p.m.

Commissioner Schilling stated that he has seen a lot of unfortunate accidents on Highway 8 agreed
that the issue will not go away.

Mr. Tolzmann asked if there were any plans to improve Highway 8.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that MnDot has three basic plan options they are considering, but
he isn’t sure about the timeline for the project. He noted that the Liberty Ponds development was
required to put in turn lanes.

Commissioner Murdock asked about the estimated cost for putting in a turn lane.

Mr. White, stated that the last time he built one, a right turn lane cost about $50,000 and a left turn
lane cost about $100,000.

Commissioner Murdock stated that he had driven over to the property today and reviewed the aerial
photos and noted that there used to be an old farm place in the center.

Mr. Tolzmann stated that was where he was born and the home was moved in 1953 on conjunction
with when they put in Highway 8.

Commissioner Coughlin asked about condition number 5, to remove the .64 acres of buildable area
shown along Hamlet Avenue as part of Lot 6 Block 1 and whether this would leave any buildable
area left on that lot.

Planning/Zoning Administrator Weck noted that the buildable area is actually in the back and was to
reduce the confusion of someone thinking that they could build a house on those areas.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that the staff report included language about extending Hale Avenue
which would then cut into Lot 3 and asked if this would then not be big enough.

Planning/Zoning Administrator Weck stated that would be possible but they may be able to move
things over and make it work.



Commissioner Coughlin stated that there was information in the staff report that is not listed in the
conditions, so it is a bit confusing. She encouraged Mr. Tolzmann to read through all the information
to make sure nothing gets missed.

Chair Lobermeier stated that it appears as though there are still a lot of moving parts and changes
with property lines as well as the MnDot negotiations, so he suggested tabling this item.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER LOBERMEIER, SECONDED BY
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER ERICSON, TO TABLE DISCUSSION OF THE
PRELIMINARY PLAT, D-18-001 “CHERRY HILL”, KEN TOLZMANN, 24738 HAMLET AVENUE,
PROPERTY ID NUMBER 21.10659.00.

Voting Aye:  Coughlin, Schilling, Ericson, Murdock, and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None
Abstain: None

NEW BUSINESS:
3. None.

OLD BUSINESS:

4, Conditional Use Permit: Mathew Wick & Jake Miller
Automobile Dealership Life Rides, Inc
26643 Fallbrook Avenue, Unit C

A MOTION WAS MADE BY PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER SCHILLING, SECONDED BY
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER COUGHLIN, TO REMOVE THIS ITEM FROM THE TABLE
AND OPEN IT FOR DISCUSSION.

Voting Aye:  Coughlin, Schilling, Ericson, Murdock, and, Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None
Abstain: None

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that this item was tabled to clarify some of the parking lot issues.
He reviewed the aerial photo that showed the different parking spaces as well as how many spaces
are required per the zoning ordinance. He noted that there will be enough parking spaces available
and noted the list of conditions in the staff report, including that all the parking spaces in the entire
lot are painted and striped.

Commissioner Coughlin asked about the parking on the unpaved area and asked if they would have
to stop parking there.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he would like to see it stop, but since they are already using
it, he would say, no.

Commissioner Murdock asked if the applicant would mark their vehicles to indicate that they belong
to the applicant.

The applicant stated that they would like to but knows that different cities have different rules for this
type of thing.



A MOTION WAS MADE BY PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER SCHILLING, SECONDED BY
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER ERICSON, TO RECOMMEND TO THE CITY COUNCIL THE
APPROVAL OF THE CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR LIFE RIDES, INC. AUTO DEALERSHIP,
FOR MATHEW WICK AND JAKE MILLER AT 26643 FALBROOK AVENUE, UNIT C, SUBJECT
TO CONDITIONS INCLUDED IN THE STAFF REPORT.

Voting Aye:  Coughlin, Schilling, Ericson, Murdock, and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None
Abstain: None

Mr. Miller asked about the deadline to complete the parking lot striping and whether they needed to
be completed before the Council meeting. He confirmed that there were only two required
handicapped spots for the entire building.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that it did not have to be done before the Council meeting and
suggested they contact him to get the specifications for the parking lot.

OLD BUSINESS
5. Ordinance Review Shoreland District.

Chair Lobermeier stated that there is only one section that still needs to be dealt with, Section 40-
316 and asked Zoning Administrator Weck to fill the Commission in on the changes he had made.

Zoning Administrator Weck gave an overview of the changes he made and how he had marked up
the document.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that she went back to the March 27, 2018 meeting and looked at the
comments in the margin of the original information Zoning Administrator Weck had given to the
Commission. She read aloud comments he made in the model shoreland ordinance regarding
increased density and asked if the City even wanted to consider increased density even if the site
would allow for it.

Zoning Administrator Weck noted that he left everything in so the Commission could discuss it.

Chair Lobermeier stated that increased density probably could occur but he feels there are a number
of items included that would tend to limit the density.

Commissioner Schilling stated that he believes the way this section is worded will keep the density
in check.

Commissioner Coughlin asked about section (5)(c) 2, regarding commercial PUDs and whether this
would be motels, hotels, or resorts.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that it would be referring to hotels, motels and apartment buildings.

Chair Lobermeier asked about section (4) (¢) 1 and whether the language “beaching of watercraft”
needs to be included.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he believes it should be included because the City is looking
to forbid people from beaching their watercraft.



Chair Lobermeier asked about structure setbacks from the ordinary high-water level and items i. and
ii. He stated that he didn’t understand the wording or the use of the word “or”.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that some of the formatting from the model shoreland ordinance
wasn’t done very well, so there could be hidden text that are located under the sidebars.

Chair Lobermeier suggested leaving the language as “are increased to at least 50 percent greater
than the minimum setback” and not getting into the vegetative cover at all because that is very
subjective. He stated that under item (6) (d) 2 stormwater management facilities, he noted that under
40-328 it simply states 25% in shoreland for impervious surfaces and wonders why this section states
35% impervious surface coverage may be allowed in the first tier of general development lakes.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that it may be because that is the only way to get the increased
density numbers. He stated that he can ask about this when he talks to the DNR.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that part of the controlled access in the Washington County ordinance
states that “any individual riparian lots that do not contain a seasonal or permanent home is allowed
one dock with the capacity to accommodate up to three watercrafts. The dock shall serve the riparian
lot only. All other temporary or permanent structures or recreation vehicles are prohibited.” She
stated that she thinks this may be worth including because it prevents someone from taking a lot and
setting up and renting out spots on it for people to have lake access.

Commissioner Schilling stated that it would be a private lot and questioned whether the City could
control that type of use.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that if this language was included, the City could control it. He
stated that he thinks this section could be included under Land Uses.

Commissioner Murdock asked why the City would regulate a vacant lot owner differently than a lot
owner with a house with regarding to dockage. He stated that the commercial use is already being
dealt with in a different way. He stated that as a potential buyer and builder of a home, he would
think people would like to have the same entitlements to use their dock as anyone else on the lake.
He noted that he had lived in a tent while they built a house and this language seems like the City is
encroaching on people’s right to use their own property the same as their neighbor.

Commissioner Schilling stated that if the language is added he questions who would enforce it. He
stated that he thinks all lots need to be treated the same.

Chair Lobermeier states that while he likes the language, he would suggest the City wait and see
what happens before considering including it.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER SCHILLING, SECONDED BY
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER COUGHLIN, TO DIRECT THE ZONING ADMINISTRATOR
TO SUBMIT THE SHORELAND ORDINANCE WITH CHANGES AS DISCUSSED, TO THE DNR
FOR REVIEW.

Voting Aye:  Coughlin, Schilling, Ericson, Murdock, and Lobermeier.
Voting Nay: None
Abstain: None

Mary Renn expressed her appreciation for the hard work the Planning Commission has put into the
shoreland ordinance and noted that they have taken a long time and taken it seriously for the
residents.



COMMUNICATIONS:
6. None

ADJOURN:

A MOTION WAS MADE BY PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER SCHILLING, SECONDED BY
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER COUGHLIN, TO ADJOURN THE REGULAR MEETING OF
THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION FOR SEPTEMBER 25, 2018 AT 8:11
P.M.

Voting Aye:  Coughlin, Schilling, Ericson, Murdock, and Lobermeier.
Voting Nay: None
Abstain: None



